Ngamatapouri Library 1970

This has been copied from a handwritten account of the library written by Kathleen Annabell (nee Haddow).

In a manuscript by Mr B.J. Annabell about the early days in the Ngamatapouri district he wrote “after the parents of the district had arranged successfully for the primary education of their increasing families by building two schools ….. and arranging for a teacher, their next community effort was the institution of a small public library to supply reading material, if not education, for the adult population.

This was a small building erected on the same spot as the present library, and was quite well supplied with books, mostly but not entirely novels. Many were given by the settlers for a start, and many more were bought.”

This first building was put up by Mr. George Braithwaite, a local farmer, soon after the turn of the century, probably 1901. It was a small building but very useful. Public meetings, social events of all kinds, and church services were held there. A confirmation service was held there about 1906.

It soon became evident that a larger building was necessary and by 1908 a “library extension fund” had reached a sufficient amount for the plans for enlarging the building to be carried out. When finished the whole building was rather ungainly and was unlined. It was a hall, a women’s dressing room and a kitchen. The women’s dressing room was well named as most of the folk came in gigs or on  horseback, and needed to change into smarter clothes for the social events. These smarter clothes were generally carried in sugar bags on the front of the saddle. Babies and tiny tots often were brought and put to sleep on the floor of the dressing room. The riding clothes removed and put in the sugar bag made a pillow.
This whole extension for the library cost £47-10-2.  A local farmer did the building and charged £7-17-0 for labour. The timber cost £36-18-2 delivered on the spot by the miller Mr. John Chesswas.

By 1910 the young folk began roller skating in the hall and kept going until at least 1916. Dancing then became the popular evening pastime. The skating had spoilt the surface of the floor boards so they were lifted and turned. That probably put a final stop to skating. Two large cupboards were built in the kitchen to hold the books.

The population had moved a little so that the Ngamatapouri site where the library and hall were situated was not very central and the unlined hall, good for such occupations as football practice and skating, was beginning to be thought a little rough for dances. The ladies began raising funds with socials and parties and by 1920 had £38 to be banked for the building of a new hall or rebuilding of the old one.
By 1929 enough money had been raised to build the new hall at the junction and the hall part of the old building was pulled down and used in helping make the new building. The library was given some material, chiefly iron, and the original floor. The library committee and those interested, together with a bush carpenter, built the outside of the building and Mr. E. Chesswas, a son of the district, now a town builder, bought lining boards and wallpaper and lined and papered the place and set up the shelves. Another worker painted the outside and so for £36-14-2 our library was once more in good order – a little bigger than the original. Since then little has had to be done but painting and tidying up generally.

The members have never asked for any grant from the Patea County Council. A Government grant was collected in 1913 and not again until 1921. From 1925 until 1929 a grant came every year averaging £9 a year. This bought as many as £40 would do today and helped considerably. The grant was based on what was locally raised for books. Being separated from the hall meant we got no hire funds but we did have at first the use of the new hall for library socials at a cheap rate.

In the early days money was raised by small socials held in the library extension, by donations, subscriptions from members, donations from the Farmer’s Union, the football club and other groups, and hire of the extension for meetings, skating and dances. The library, to make evenings a success, spent £35 in 1928 on a good piano. This departed to the new hall when it was built in 1929. That £35 would have bought a lot of new books which were needed rather badly at the time. It was not until 1923 that the library funds were separated from the new hall funds, and the library began again with no money at all. However 37 new books were bought that year. From 1922 until 1929 inclusive, £105 was spent on books. About half the cost was covered by Government grants.
In the late 1930’s ping pong was played in the library for some time. Though it was enjoyable it was really a mistake as it made the uncovered books very dusty.

Through the first 40 years about 12 librarians had been on duty averaging 3 or more years apiece. For the young people the library proved a happy trysting place. There was a lull in library affairs in the mid thirties. The new hall was used for all meetings and entertainments, and the slump was on so donations and subscriptions were rare. However with 1941 came a change.

Mr. Peat, a local farmer, in 1941 suggested we get in touch with the CLS. This was done and the library has had books on loan ever since. Four members take turns every four weeks as Librarian keeping the library open every Sunday from 1.45 pm to 2.30 pm. Also one day a week, for mothers who found Sunday inconvenient, books have been issued after school for some years now. This day is also used by children for whom books are borrowed from time to time. This definitely improves the children’s reading ability. There has never been any difficulty in finding members who will take library duty one Sunday a month.

Before the van came in 1964 the books came by train and carrier in hampers or cartons. The Librarians depended on readers to report on books they read. Several members were very constant readers and were very good at this. Now when the van comes, as many readers as like to, generally nearly half the members, turn up and help choose the books, so every book should have at least one person to report on it.
Through the years we have occasionally had a really nasty book. The first – 50 years ago – was taken out by an older man who was so disgusted he put it in the fire and burnt it, and then solemnly put the price of it in the hand of the librarian – his own son. The next unpleasant book, the Librarian told the mother of a primary school girl that it was not suitable for her to read as it was decidedly sexy. The next time the Librarian saw the book it was being read by that very girl.
A third book was so disgusting the Librarian thought she should not only get the book out of her library but do something to remove it from libraries in general. She rang the head of Wanganui Library and asked his advice. He hummed and ha-ad and then said to contact CLS at Palmerston North. She did and was told it had passed as suitable for libraries and that we could have it exchanged for another book. Well that seemed a little feeble so the Librarian wrote to Wellington to the Office of the Minister of Internal Affairs. A most impudent letter came back saying that our letter had the wrong address and should have been sent to so and so. The address was in the same building but evidently the staff in the various offices were not on friendly footings. The Librarian then wrote the same letter to the correct address but added a P.S. about the impudent clerk. A very polite letter came back saying a copy of the book would be procured and we would be told what decision had been come to. That was about 15 years ago. Evidently they are finding the book very heavy reading for the Librarian is still waiting for a report.
The library has ceased to exist as a library now. Apparently it was on DoC land and they sold the land and building to a local[image: image1.jpg]


 farmer.
It is now sited adjacent to the church.
